FIRST AMENDED AND RESTATED BYLAWS OF HIDEAWAY BAY BEACH CLUB CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION, INC.

1. <u>Identity.</u> These are the <u>First Amended and Restated</u> Bylaws of HIDEAWAY BAY BEACH CLUB CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION, INC., hereafter called the "Association", a corporation, not-for-profit under the laws of the State of Florida, the Articles of Incorporation of which are filed in the office of the Secretary of State.

The Association has been organized for the purpose of administering a Condominium pursuant to <u>\$Chapter</u>718, Florida Statutes-(<u>1986</u>)(<u>2017</u>), as amended, called (the "Condominium Act") in these Bylaws, which Condominium is identified by the name HIDEAWAY BAY BEACH CLUB, A CONDOMINIUM, and is located upon the lands in Charlotte County, Florida described in Article III of the Declaration of Condominium of HIDEAWAY BAY BEACH CLUB, A CONDOMINIUM (the "Declaration").

A. The office of the Association shall be at P.O. Box 910, Sarasota, Florida 33578<u>such</u> place as the Board of Directors may designate from time to time.

B. The fiscal year of the Association shall be the calendar year.

C. The seal of the Association will bear the name of the Association, the word "Florida", the words "Corporation Not-For-Profit," and the year of incorporation.

2. <u>Members' Meetings.</u> The minutes of all meetings of Unit Owners shall be kept in a book available for inspection by Unit Owners, or their authorized representatives at any reasonable time. The Association shall maintain official records as provided in §718.111(12), Florida Statutes (1986), as amended the Condominium Act.

A. The annual members' meeting shall be held at the office of the Association at the Caretaker's Office, on <u>a date to be determined by the Board of Directors, but not less than thirteen (13) months from the date of the last Annual Meeting the 2nd Tuesday in March of each year for the purpose of electing Directors and transacting any other business authorized to be transacted by the members; provided, however, that if that day is a legal holiday, the meeting shall be held at the same hour on the next day that is not a holiday. It is estimated that the first annual meeting will be held on March 8, 1988.</u>

B. Special members' meetings shall be held whenever called by the president or vicepresident or by a majority of the Board of Directors, and must be called by such officers upon receipt of a written request from not less than $\frac{\text{fifty (50\%)twenty-five}}{\text{twenty-five}}$ percent (25%) of the voting interests of the Association.

C. Notice of all members' meetings stating the time and place and the objects for which the meeting is called shall be given by the president, vice-president or secretary unless waived in writing. Such notice shall be in writing to each member at his address as it appears on the books of the Association and shall be mailed not less than fourteen (14) days nor more than thirty (30)

PAGE 1 OF BYLAWS

days prior to the date of the meeting. Notice on the annual meeting shall also be posted in a conspicuous place on the Condominium Property at least fourteen (14) days prior to the annual meeting. Notice of meetings may be waived before meetings, but unless a Unit Owner waives in writing the right to receive notice of the annual meetings by mail, the notice of the annual meetings shall be sent by mail to each Unit Owner. An officer of the Association shall provide an affidavit to be included in the official records of the Association, affirming that notices of the Association meeting were mailed or hand delivered in accordance with §718.112(2) (d)2., Florida Statutes (1986), as amended the Condominium Act, to each Unit Owner at the address last furnished to the Association. However, notwithstanding the above, notice of any meeting where assessments against Unit Owners are to be considered for any reason shall specifically contain a statement that assessments will be considered and the nature of any such assessments.

D. A quorum of members' meetings shall consist of persons entitled to cast a majority of the voting interests of the entire membership. The acts approved by a majority of the voting interests present at a meeting at which the quorum is present shall constitute the acts of the members, except when approval of a greater number of members is required by the Declaration of Condominium, the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws.

E. Owners of each Unit shall collectively be entitled to one (1) voting interest, and the person entitled to such voting interest shall be determined as follows:

A statement must be filed with the secretary of the Association, in writing, signed under oath by members with a present interest in an Unit and shall state:

(1) The respective percentage interest of every person (as recorded in the Public Records of Charlotte County, Florida) owning a vested present interest in the fee title of the Unit in which the affiant owns an interest.

(2) Which one of the Owners of the Unit in which the affiant owns an voting interest is to represent all of the Owners of that Unit at membership meetings and cast the vote to which they are entitled. The person so designated by the persons owning the majority interest in a Unit shall be known as having the voting interest and shall be the only member owning an interest in that Unit eligible to cast the voting interest for said Unit at membership meetings. The person designated as having the voting interest may continue to cast the binding vote for all members owning an interest in the Unit in which he owns an interest until such time as another person is properly designated as having the voting interest by those members owning the majority present interest by a similar written statement filed with the secretary.

(3) There shall not be more than one (1) voting interest at any one time and each may cast one (1) vote. A corporation, or any individual with an interest in more than one Unit, may be designated as having the voting interest for each Unit in which he or it owns an interest. Failure by members of an Unit to file such statement under oath with the secretary prior to a members' meeting will result in depriving the members with an interest in such Unit of a vote at such meeting.

F. Votes may be cast in person or by proxy. A proxy may be given by any person

PAGE 2 OF BYLAWS

entitled to have a voting interest and shall be valid only for the particular meeting designated in the proxy and any lawfully adjourned meetings thereof and must be filed with the secretary before the appointed time of the meeting or any adjournment of the meeting. In no event shall any proxy be valid for a period longer than 90 days after the date of the first meeting for which it was given. Every proxy shall be revocable at any time at the pleasure of the Unit Owner executing it. A proxy, to be valid, must contain at least all of the following information: (1) the name of the Member voting by proxy; (2) the name of the person authorized to vote the proxy; (3) the date the proxy was given; (4) the date, time and place of the meeting for which the proxy is given; (5) if a limited proxy, those items which the holder of the proxy may vote, in the manner in which the vote is cast; and (6) whether the proxy expressly provides for appointment of a substitute.

G. If any meeting of members cannot be organized because a quorum has not attended, the members who are present, either in person or by proxy, may adjourn the meeting from time to time until a quorum is present.

H. The Membership may, at the discretion of the Board or as otherwise permitted by any Florida rule or statute which specifically provides for Membership action, act by written agreement in lieu of meeting provided that written notice of the matter or matters to be determined by such Members is given to the Membership at the addresses and within the time period set forth in Paragraph 2 C hereof or is duly waived in accordance with such Paragraph. Any determination as to the matter or matters to be determined pursuant to such notice by the number of persons that would be able to determine the subject matter at a meeting shall be binding on the Membership. Any such notice shall set forth a time period during which time a response may be made thereto.

I. The order of business at annual members' meetings and as far as practical at other members' meetings, shall be:

- (1) Calling of the roll and certifying proxies.
- (2) Proof of notice of meeting or waiver of notice.
- (3) Reading and disposal of any unapproved minutes.
- (4) Reports of officers.
- (5) Reports of committees.
- (6) Election of inspectors of election.
- (7) Election of Directors.
- (8) Unfinished business.
- (9) New business (including consideration of the budget).
- (10) Adjournment.

The President of the Board of Directors shall preside at all meetings. In his absence, the Board shall designate the person to preside.

J. Disputes. Pursuant to Section 718.112(2)(1) and 718.1255 of the Florida Condominium Act, Florida Statutes, Chapter 718 (the "Condominium Act"), there shall be voluntary binding arbitration of internal disputes which arise from the operation of the Association among Developer, any of the members, the Association and/or their agents or assigns, provided that the parties to the dispute agree upon resolving the dispute by such means for those disputes

PAGE 3 OF BYLAWS

which are required to be arbitrated pursuant to the Condominium Act. The arbitration shall be performed in accordance with rules and procedures promulgated by the Association and the Division of Florida Mobile Homes, Land Sales and Condominiums, and set forth in the Condominium Act, from time to time, and the result of such arbitration shall be binding upon all parties thereto.

3. <u>Board of Directors</u>.

A. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(1) <u>Number, Tenure and Qualifications</u>. The affairs of the Association shall be governed by a Board not less than three nor more than seven directors, and shall be fixed at five until changed by adoption of a membership resolution. Commencing at the annual membership meeting in 1999, the terms of the Board of Directors shall be staggered. The three persons elected who receive the most votes shall serve two (2) years and two other elected directors shall serve one (1) year terms. Thereafter, all directors shall serve two year terms, provided however, that either the Board of Directors or the membership shall have the authority to temporarily assign a one year term to one or more directors positions if necessary to reimplement a scheme of staggering the Board, to promote continuity of leadership, so that approximately one-half of the Board members are elected each year.

(2) The election of Directors shall be held at the annual membership meeting in the following manner which shall apply in lieu of the Director election procedures under Chapter 718, Florida Statutes (2017).

(3) A nominating committee of five (5) members shall be appointed by the Board of Directors not less than seventy-five (75) days prior to the annual members' meeting. The committee shall nominate one person for each Director then serving.

(4)(3) Any eligible person desiring to be a candidate may submit a self nomination, in writing, not less than forty (40) days prior to the scheduled election and shall automatically be entitled to be listed on the ballot.

(5)(4) The ballot prepared for the annual meeting shall list all Director candidates in alphabetical order. Ballots shall be mailed to all voting interests with notice of the annual meeting and may be returned to the Association prior to the meeting, or cast at the meeting.

(6)(5) There shall be no nominations from the floor on the date of the election.

(7) The election shall be by plurality vote (the nominees receiving the highest number of votes are elected). The votes shall be broken by agreement among the candidates who are tied, or if there is no agreement, by lot, such as the flipping of a coin by neutral party.

(8)(7) No election shall be necessary if the number of candidates is less than or equal to the number of vacancies. The candidates shall automatically be elected and their names announced at the annual meeting.

PAGE 4 OF BYLAWS

B. <u>Vacancies on the Board</u>. If the office of any director becomes vacant for any reason, a successor or successors to fill the remaining unexpired term or terms shall be appointed or elected as follows:

(1) If a vacancy is caused by the death, disqualification or resignation of a director, a majority of the remaining directors, even though less than a quorum, shall appoint a successor, who shall hold office for the remaining unexpired term.

(2) If a vacancy occurs as a result of a recall and less than a majority of the directors are removed, the vacancy may be filled by appointment by a majority of the remaining directors, though less than a quorum. If vacancies occur as a result of a recall in which a majority or more of the directors are removed, the vacancies hall be filled in accordance with procedural rules adopted by the Division of Florida, Land Sales, Condominium and Mobile homes, governing the method of selecting successors, and providing procedures for the operation of the Association during the period after the recall but prior to the designation of successor directors sufficient to constitute a quorum.

For purposes of the foregoing provisions, in order to establish a quorum at the Board of Director's meeting held to elect a replacement member to the Board, it shall be necessary only for a majority of the remaining directors to attend the meeting either in person or by telephone conference participation. No other business may be transacted at the meeting until a quorum of the entire Board of Directors is present.

C. <u>Removal of Directors</u>. Any or all directors may be removed with or without cause by a majority vote of the entire membership, either by a written petition or at any meeting called for that purpose. The question shall be determined separately as to each director sought to be removed. If a special meeting is called by ten percent (10%) of the voting interests for the purpose of recall, the notice of the meeting must be accompanied by a dated copy of the signature list stating the purpose of the signatures. The meeting must be held not less than fourteen (14) days nor more than sixty (60) days from the date that notice of the meeting is given.

D. The organization meeting of a newly-elected Board of Directors shall be held within ten (10) days of their election at such place and time as shall be fixed by the Directors at the meeting at which they were elected. Such notice of meeting shall be posted conspicuously on Condominium property at least 48 hours prior to the meeting, except in an emergency.

E. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be held at such time and place as shall be determined, from time to time, by a majority of the Directors. Notice of regular meetings shall be given to each Director, personally or by mail, telephone or telegraph, at least three (3) days prior to the day named for such meeting. All meetings of the Board shall be open to all Unit Owners, and adequate notice of all meetings, regular and special, shall be posted conspicuously on the Condominium Property at least 48 hours in advance, except in an emergency. A director may participate in a meeting through the use of telephone conference calls. When a telephone conference call is used, a telephone speaker phone shall be utilized so that directors and any members present in an open meeting may hear any discussion. Directors utilizing telephone

PAGE 5 OF BYLAWS

conference calls may be counted toward obtaining a quorum and may vote over the telephone.

The minutes of all meetings of the Board of Directors shall be kept in a book available for inspection by Unit Owners, or their authorized representatives, at any reasonable time. The Association shall retain these minutes for a period of not less than seven (7) years.

A Director of the Association who is present at a meeting of its board at which action on any corporate matter is taken shall be presumed to have assented to the action taken, unless he votes against such action or abstains from voting in respect thereto because of an asserted conflict of interest.

F. Special meetings of the Directors may be called by the president and must be called by the secretary at the written request of one-third (1/3) of the Directors. Except in an emergency, not less than three (3) days notice of the meeting shall be given personally or by mail, telephone or telegraph, which notice shall state the time, place and purpose of the meeting.

G. Any Director may waive notice of a meeting before the meeting and such waiver shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of notice.

H. A quorum at Director's meetings shall consist of a majority of the entire Board of Directors. The acts approved by a majority of those present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall constitute the acts of the Board of Directors, except when approval by a greater number of Directors is required by the Declaration of Condominium, the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws.

I. If at any meeting of the Board of Directors there be less than a quorum present, the majority of these present may adjourn the meeting from time to time until a quorum is present. At any adjourned meeting any business that might have been transacted at the meeting as originally called may be transacted without further notice.

J. The presiding officer of Directors' meetings shall be the Chairman of the Board if such an officer has been elected; and if not, the president shall preside. In the absence of the presiding officer the Directors present shall designate one of their number to preside.

K. The order of business at Directors' meeting shall be

- (1) Calling of roll.
- (2) Proof of due notice of meeting.
- (3) Reading and disposal of any unapproved minutes.
- (4) Reports of officers and committees.
- (5) Election of officers.
- (6) Unfinished business.
- (7) New business.
- (8) Adjournment.
- L. The Directors of the Association may select an Advisory Board consisting of three

PAGE 6 OF BYLAWS

(3) members of the Association. The Advisory Board shall have no power or authority but shall offer the Directors suggestions and advice regarding the management of the affairs of the Association. The Advisory Board shall serve at the pleasure of the Directors of the Association.

<u>M.</u> Powers and Duties of the Board of Directors. All of the powers and duties of the Association existing under the laws of Florida generally, Florida Not For Profit Corporation Statute, the Condominium Act, and the Condominium Documents shall be exercised exclusively by the Board of Directors, or its duly authorized agents, contractors, or employees, subject only to the approval by Unit Owners when such is specifically required. The powers of the Directors shall include, but shall not be limited to, the following:

(1) To Assess. The Directors shall adopt budgets and make and collect special and periodic Assessments against owners to defray the costs of the Association. Special assessments may be levied by the Board to meet unusual, unexpected, unbudgeted, or nonrecurring expenses. The special assessment may be payable in a single lump sum or by installments as determined by the Board.

(2) To Expend Association Funds. The Directors shall use the proceeds of Assessments in the exercise of its powers and duties.

(3) To Maintain the Condominium Property. The Directors shall maintain, repair, replace, and operate the property within the Condominium.

(4) To Adopt Regulations. The Directors shall enact and may amend Rules and Regulations concerning the transfer, use, appearance, maintenance, and occupancy of the Units, Common Elements, Limited Common Elements, and Association Property, and to enact rules, policies, and resolutions pertaining to the operation of the Association, subject to any limitations contained in the Declaration of Condominium.

(5) To Reconstruct After Casualty. The Directors may reconstruct the Units, Common Elements, Limited Common Elements, and Association Property improvements after casualty and to further improve the property, as specified in the Declaration of Condominium.

(6) To Approve Transfers. The Directors may approve or disapprove proposed transactions or transfers in the manner provided by the Declaration of Condominium, and to charge a preset fee, not to exceed the maximum permissible by law, in connection with such right of approval. In connection with the Lease of Units, the Board may require the posting of a security deposit to protect against damages to the Common Elements or Association Property, in the manner provided by law.

(7) To Enforce. The Directors may enforce by legal means the provisions of applicable laws and the Condominium Documents, and to interpret said Condominium Documents, as the final arbiter of their meaning.

(8) To Contract. The Directors may contract for management, maintenance, and operation of the Condominium.

PAGE 7 OF BYLAWS

(9) To Insure. The Directors shall carry insurance for the protection of the Unit Owners and the Association, pursuant to requirements contained in the Declaration of Condominium and Chapter 718, Florida Statutes (2017).

(10) To Pay Utility Bills. The Directors shall pay the cost of all utility services rendered to the Condominium and not billed to Owners of individual Units.

(11) To Hire and Discharge. The Directors may employ personnel and designate other officers to be paid a reasonable compensation and grant them such duties as seem appropriate for proper administration of the purposes of the Association.

(12) To Sue and Be Sued. The Directors may bring and defend suits and other proceedings and may exercise its business judgment as to whether the interests of the Association are best served with respect to settlement of a matter or whether a suit or other proceeding should be commenced. The power of the Directors to bring suits and other proceedings is subject to the provisions of Article XXVI of the Declaration of Condominium.

(13) To Deal in Real and Personal Property and Borrow Money. Directors may make and execute contracts, deeds, mortgages, notes, and other evidence of indebtedness, Leases, and other instruments by its officers and to purchase, own, Lease, convey, and encumber real and personal property. The Directors may grant easements and licenses over the Condominium Property necessary or desirable for proper operation of the Condominium.

To Enter Into Contracts for Products and Services. All contracts for the (14)purchase, Lease, or renting of materials or equipment, or which are not to be fully performed within one year, and all contracts for services shall be in writing. As to any such contract which requires payment exceeding 5% of the gross budget (not including reserves) except for contracts with employees of the Association, attorneys, accountants, architects, engineers, landscape architects, and community association managers, the Association shall obtain competitive bids unless the products and services are needed as the result of an emergency, or unless the desired supplier is the only source of supply within the County serving the Association. The Association need not accept the lowest bid. If a contract was awarded under the competitive bid procedures of this Section, any renewal of that contract is not subject to such competitive bid requirements if the contract contained a provision that allowed the Board to cancel a contract on thirty days' notice. Materials, equipment, or services provided to a condominium under a local government franchise agreement by a franchise holder are not subject to the competitive bid requirements of this Section. The Association may opt out of competitive bidding requirements, by a Unit Owner vote, in the manner provided by law.

(15) To Levy Fines. The Directors may, pursuant to Section 718.303, Florida Statutes (2017), impose fines against a Unit not to exceed the maximum permissible by law, for failure to comply with the provisions of the Board policies and resolutions, the Condominium Documents, including the Rules and Regulations, and applicable laws by Owners, occupants, licensees, tenants, and invitees. a. A fine may be imposed for each day of continuing violation at the highest rate allowed by law per violation with a single notice and opportunity for hearing, provided that no fine shall in the aggregate exceed the maximum amount permissible by law.

b. The party against whom the fine is sought to be levied shall be afforded an opportunity for hearing by being given notice of not less than fourteen (14) days. Notice shall be deemed effective when deposited in the United States Mail, certified, return receipt requested, to the address of the Unit Owner listed in the official records of the Association, and as to tenants, to the mailing address for the Unit. Said notice shall include:

(i) A statement of the date, time, and place of the hearing;

(ii) A statement of the provisions of the Declaration, Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws, Rules and Regulations, Board policies and resolutions, or laws which have allegedly been violated; and

(iii) A short and plain statement of the matters asserted by the

Association.

c. The party against whom the fine may be levied shall have an opportunity to respond, to present evidence, and to provide written and oral argument on all issues involved and shall have an opportunity at the hearing to review, challenge, and respond to any material considered by the Association. The hearing shall be held before a Committee which is comprised of three (3) Unit Owners, who are not Members of the Board of Directors, their spouses or other occupant of the Unit owned by a Director or their spouse. If the Committee does not agree with the fine, the fine may not be levied. Should the Association be required to initiate legal proceedings to collect a duly levied fine, the prevailing party in an action to collect said fine shall be entitled to an award of costs, and a reasonable attorney's fee incurred before trial (including in connection with the preparation for and conduct of fining hearings), at trial, and on appeal. Unit Owners shall be jointly and severally liable for the payment of fines levied against tenants, guests, invitees, or other occupants of a Unit.

(16) To Appoint Committees. The Directors may appoint committees and delegate to such committees those powers and duties of the Association as the Board deems advisable. All committees and committee members shall serve at the pleasure of the Board. Committees of the Association as defined in the Section 718.103(7), Florida Statutes (2017), shall conduct their affairs in the same manner as provided in these Bylaws for Board of Director meetings. All other committees may meet and conduct their affairs in private without prior notice or Owner participation, unless otherwise directed by the Board of Directors.

(17) To Ensure Fire Safety Compliance. The Directors may accept a Certificate of Compliance from a licensed electrical contractor or electrician as evidence of compliance of the condominium Units with the applicable Fire and Life Safety Code.

PAGE 9 OF BYLAWS

(18) To Approve the Installation of Hurricane Shutters. The Directors shall adopt hurricane shutter specifications for the Condominium which shall include color, style, and other factors deemed relevant by the Board. All specifications adopted by the Board shall comply with the applicable building code, or shall be structured to ensure that installed shutters are in compliance with the applicable building code. The Board shall not refuse to approve the installation or replacement of hurricane shutters conforming to the specifications adopted by the Board, provided that the Board may condition approval upon the Unit Owner's agreement to execute appropriate documentation regarding same.

(19) To Exercise Emergency Powers. In the event of any "emergency" as defined in Paragraph 4.19.10 below, the Board of Directors may exercise the emergency powers described in this Section, and any other emergency powers authorized by Section 617.0207, Florida Statutes (2017), and Section 617.0303, Florida Statutes (2017).

a. The Board may name as assistant officers persons who are not Directors, which assistant officers shall have the same authority as the executive officers to whom they are assistant during the period of the emergency, to accommodate the incapacity of any officer of the Association.

b. The Board may relocate the principal office or designate alternative principal offices or authorize the officers to do so.

c. During any emergency the Board may hold meetings with notice given only to those Directors with whom it is practicable to communicate, and the notice may be given in any practicable manner, including publication or radio. The Director or Directors in attendance at such a meeting shall constitute a quorum.

d. The Board may change or postpone the annual meeting date to a date and time determined by the Board, even if such change will result in not holding an annual meeting in a particular calendar year, as long as the annual meeting is held no more than eighteen (18) months after the prior annual meeting date.

e. Corporate action taken in good faith during an emergency under this Section to further the ordinary affairs of the Association shall bind the Association; and shall have the rebuttable presumption of being reasonable and necessary.

<u>f.</u> The Board may use reserve funds to meet Association needs, and may use reserve funds as collateral for Association loans. By adoption of this provision, the owners specifically authorize the Board to use reserve funds for nonscheduled purposes in the event of an emergency pursuant to Section 718.112(2)(f)3., Florida Statutes (2017). The Board may adopt emergency assessments with such notice deemed practicable by the Board.

g. The Board may adopt emergency Rules and Regulations governing the use and occupancy of the units, common elements, limited common elements, and

PAGE 10 OF BYLAWS

Association property, with notice given only to those Directors with whom it is practicable to communicate.

h. Any officer, Director, or employee of the Association acting with a reasonable belief that his actions are lawful in accordance with these emergency Bylaws shall incur no liability for doing so, except in the case of willful misconduct.

i. These emergency Bylaws shall supersede any inconsistent or contrary provisions of the Bylaws during the period of the emergency.

j. For purposes of this Section only, an "emergency" exists only during a period of time that the condominium, or the immediate geographic area in which the condominium is located, is subjected to:

(i) a state of emergency declared by local civil or law enforcement

authorities;

(ii) a hurricane warning;

(iii) a partial or complete evacuation order;

(iv) federal or state "disaster area" status;

(v) a catastrophic occurrence, whether natural or manmade, which seriously damages or threatens to seriously damage the physical existence of the condominium, such as an earthquake, tidal wave, fire, hurricane, tornado, war, civil unrest, or act of terrorism; or,

(vi) an unanticipated set of circumstances, which, if not acted upon with immediacy, is likely to cause imminent and significant financial harm to the Association, the Unit Owners, the Condominium Property, or Association Property.

(20) To Enter Into Contracts and Borrow Money. The Directors may make contracts and incur liabilities, borrow money at such rates of interest as the corporation may determine, issue its notes, bonds, and other obligations, and secure any of its obligations by mortgage and pledge of all or any of its property, franchises, or income. Borrowing money, pledging regular or special assessments and other personal property as collateral, and assigning collateral assessment collection rights, when required in connection with the operation, care, maintenance, repair, replacement or improvement of the condominium property; provided, however, the consent of at least two-thirds (2/3rd) of the voting interests present in person or by proxy at a duly noticed and convened membership meeting shall be required for the borrowing of any sum in excess of twenty-five percent (25%) of the annual budget of the Association, including reserves.

M. All of the powers and duties of the Association existing under the Condominium Act, Declaration of Condominium, Articles of Incorporation and these Bylaws shall be exercised exclusively by the Board of Directors, the agents, contractors, or employees of the Board of

PAGE 11 OF BYLAWS

Directors, subject only to approval by Unit Owners when such is specifically required.

4. <u>Officers.</u> The executive officers of the Association shall be a president who shall be a Director; a vice-president, who shall be a Director; a secretary and treasurer. The Board of Directors from time to time shall elect such other officers and designate their powers and duties as the Board shall find to be required to manage the affairs of the Association.

The officers of the Association shall be elected by the Board of Directors at its first meeting following the annual meeting of the members of the Association and shall serve at the pleasure of the Board of Directors unless they shall be removed by a majority of the Board of Directors at any regular or special meeting of the Board duly called.

Any officer may resign as officer at any time. Such resignation shall be made in writing, submitted to the secretary and shall take effect as is specified in the instrument. Acceptance of resignation shall not be required to make it effective.

Any vacancy resulting from the removal or resignation of an officer as herein provided may be filled by the Board of Directors at the same meeting.

A. The president shall be the chief executive officer of the Association. He shall have all of the powers and duties usually vested in the office of the president of an association, including but not limited to the power to appoint committees from among the members from time to time, as he, in his discretion, may determine appropriate, to assist in the conduct of the affairs of the Association.

B. The vice president in the absence or disability of the president shall exercise the powers and perform the duties of the president. He also shall assist the president generally and exercise such other powers and perform such other duties as shall be prescribed by the Directors.

C. The secretary shall keep the minutes of all proceedings of the Directors and the members. He shall attend to the giving and serving of all notice to the members and Directors and other notices required by law. He shall have custody of the seal of the Association, and affix it to instruments requiring a seal when duly signed. He shall keep the records of the Association, and shall perform all other duties incident to the office of secretary of an association and as may be required by the Directors or the president.

D. The treasurer shall have custody of all property of the Association in accordance with good accounting practices; and shall perform all other duties incident to the office of the treasurer.

5. <u>Fiscal Management.</u> The provisions for fiscal management of the Association set forth in the Declaration of Condominium and Articles of Incorporation shall be supplemented by the following provisions:

A. The receipts and expenditures of the Association shall be credited and charged to accounts under the following classification as shall be appropriate, all of which expenditures shall

PAGE 12 OF BYLAWS

be common expenses:

(1) Current expense, which shall include all receipts and expenditures within the year for which the budget is made including a reasonable allowance for contingencies and working funds, except expenditures chargeable to reserves, to additional improvements or to operations. The balance in this fund at the end of each year shall be applied to reduce the assessments for current expense for the succeeding year.

(2) Reserve for deferred maintenance, which shall include funds for maintenance items that occur less frequently than annually.

(3) Reserve for replacement, which shall include funds for repair or replacement required because of damage, depreciation or obsolescence.

(4) Betterments, which shall include the funds to be used for capital expenditures for additional improvements or additional personal property that will be part of the common elements, the amount for which shall not exceed \$1,000.00; provided, however, that in the expenditure of this fund no sum in excess of \$250.00 shall be expended for a single item or purpose without approval of a majority of the members of the Association.

(5) Operations, the amount of which may be to provide a working fund or to meet losses.

B. The Board of Directors shall mail a meeting notice and copies of the proposed annual budget of common expenses to the Unit Owners not less than fourteen (14) days nor more than thirty (30) days prior to the meeting at which the budget will be considered. The proposed annual budget of common expenses shall be detailed and shall show the amounts budgeted by accounts and expense classifications, including, if applicable, but not limited to those expenses listed in §718.504(20), Florida Statutes (1986)the Condominium Act. In addition to annual operating expenses, the budget shall include reserve accounts for capital expenditures and deferred maintenance. These accounts shall include, but not be limited to, roof replacement, building painting, and pavement resurfacing. The amount to be reserved shall be computed by means of a formula which is based upon estimated life and estimated replacement costs of each reserve item. Reserves may be waived in whole or in part if at a duly called meeting of the Association a majority of the voting interest of the Association is present, in person or by proxy may so vote. Any such waiver shall be effective for only one annual budget, and the vote must be taken annually to continue to waive the statutory requirements. Also, the Board of Directors shall have the authority to increase the general operating budget up to 115% at any time during the year in accordance with §718.112(2) (e), Florida Statutes (2017).

C. The membership shall adopt a budget at the annual meeting.

(1) If a meeting of the Unit Owners has been called and a quorum is not attained or a substitute budget is not adopted by the Unit Owners, the budget proposed by the Board of Directors shall go into effect as scheduled. (2) If a meeting of the Unit Owners has been called to determine to provide no reserves or reserves less adequate than required, and such result is not attained or a quorum is not attained, the reserves, as included in the budget, shall go into effect.

D. The budget assessments for the Unit Owners for their shares of the items of the budget shall be made for the calendar year annually in advance at the scheduled annual Association meeting, preceding the year for which the assessments are made. If the budget is not adopted as required, last years budget shall continue with assessments made in the amount of the prior budget assessment and monthly installments on such assessment shall be due upon each installment payment date until such change by an amended budget. The budget assessment will be collected quarterly installments. In the event the annual budget assessment proves to be insufficient, the budget assessments may be amended at any time by the Board of Directors in the manner elsewhere provided.

E.—.The record Owners of each Unit shall be personally liable, jointly and severally, to the Association for the payment of all assessments, regular or special, made by the Association and for all costs for collecting delinquent assessments. All assessments and installments not paid when due shall be charged interest at the maximum interest rate that is allowed by law. In the event assessments against a Unit are not paid within sixty (60) days after their due date, the Association shall have the right to file a lien as provided in Article XIV of this Declaration. The Board of Directors shall have the authority to assess a late charge for all assessments that are unpaid for over thirty (30) days after due. The late charge or fine will not become a lien against the Unit nor will it exceed \$50.00 per infraction nor may any fine be levied except after giving a reasonable notice and opportunity for a hearing to the Unit Owner, and if applicable, its licensee or invitee. This provision for late charges does not apply to unoccupied Units. The procedure to be followed in obtaining the fine shall be as follows: a) The party against whom the fine is sought to be levied shall be afforded an opportunity for hearing after reasonable notice of not less than fourteen (14) days and said notice shall include:

1. A statement of the date, time and place of hearing;

2. A statement of the provisions of the declaration, association bylaws, or association rules which have allegedly been violated; and

3. A short and plain statement of the matters asserted by the association.

b) The party against whom the fine may be levied shall have an opportunity to respond, to present evidence, and to provide written and oral argument on all issues involved and shall have an opportunity at the hearing to review, challenge, and respond to any material considered by the association. The Association has a lien on each Condominium parcel for any unpaid assessments with interest and for reasonable attorney's fees incurred by the Association which are incident to the collection of the assessment or enforcement of the lien. The lien is effective from and after the recording of a claim of lien in the Public Records in Charlotte County which states the description of the Condominium parcel, the name of the record Owner, the amount due, and the due dates. No such lien shall continue for a longer period than 1 year after the claim of lien has been recorded unless, within that time, an action to enforce the lien is commenced in a

PAGE 14 OF BYLAWS

court of competent jurisdiction. The claim of lien shall secure all unpaid assessments, interest, costs and attorney's fees which are due and which may accrue subsequent to the recording of the claim of lien and prior to entry of a final judgment of foreclosure. That any collection or enforcement of lien shall be governed by <u>\$718.116</u>, Florida Statutes (1986), as amended<u>the</u> <u>Condominium Act</u>.

F.E. Assessments for common expenses of emergencies that cannot be paid from the annual assessments for common expenses shall be made only after notice of the need for such is given to the unit owners concerned. After such notice and upon approval in writing by persons entitled to cast more than one-half of the voting interests of the Unit Owners concerned, the assessment shall become effective, and it shall be due after thirty (30) days' notice in such manner as the Board of Directors of the Association may require in the notice of assessment. The specific purpose or purposes of any special assessment approved in accordance with the Condominium documents shall be set forth in a written notice of such assessment shall be used only for the specific purpose or purposes set forth in such notice, or returned to the Unit Owners. However, upon completion of such specific purpose or purposes or purpose or purpose or purposes set forth in such notice, or returned to the Unit Owners. However, upon completion of such specific purpose or purposes or purposes any excess funds shall be considered common surplus.

G.F. The Depository of the Association shall be such bank, banks or federally insured savings and loan associations as shall be designated from time to time by the Directors and in which the monies of the Association shall be deposited. Withdrawal of monies from such accounts shall be only by checks signed by such persons as are authorized by the Directors.

H.G. A review of the accounts of the Association shall be made annually by an accountant selected by the Board, and a copy of the review report shall be furnished to each member not later than sixty (60) days subsequent to the end of the Association's fiscal year.

H_____Fidelity Bonds shall be required for all persons who control or disburse funds of the Association. The amount of such bonds shall be determined by the Directors, but the principal sum shall not be less than \$10,000.00 for each such person. The Association shall bear the cost of such bonding.

6. <u>Parliamentary Rules</u>. Roberts' Rules of Order (latest edition) shall govern the conduct of Association meetings when not in conflict with the Declaration of Condominium, Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws.

7. <u>Sale, Rental, Lease or Transfer of Unit</u>. Prior to the lease, sale or transfer of any interest in a Unit and common property to any persons other than the transferror's spouse, a Board of Directors of the Association shall approve or disapprove of the proposed leases, sale or transfer, in writing, and shall notify the Owners of its decision. The fee charged by the Board of Directors for this service shall not be in excess of the expenditures reasonably required for the lease, transfer or sale and this expense shall not exceed <u>\$50.00the maximum permitted by law</u>. However, if the lease or sublease is a renewal of a lease or sublease with the same lessee or sublessee, no charge shall be made.

8. <u>Amendments</u>. Except as elsewhere provided otherwise, these Bylaws may be amended in the following manner:

A. Notice in writing of the subject matter of a proposed amendment shall be included in the notice of any meeting at which a proposed amendment is considered. The proposal to amend existing Bylaws shall contain the full text of the Bylaws to be amended; new words shall be inserted in the text underlined, and words to be deleted shall be lined through with hyphens. However, if the proposed change is so extensive that this procedure would hinder, rather than assist, the understanding of the proposed amendment, it is not necessary to use underlining and hyphens as indicators of words added or deleted, but, instead, a notation must be inserted immediately preceding the proposed amendment in substantially the following language: "Substantial rewording of Bylaws. See Bylaw ... for present text." Nonmaterial errors or omissions in the Bylaw process shall not invalidate an otherwise properly promulgated amendment.

B. A resolution for the adoption of a proposed amendment may be proposed by either the Board of Directors of the Association or by not less than fifty-one (51%) percent of the voting interest of the Association. Directors and members in person or by proxy at the meeting considering the amendment may express their approval in writing, providing such approval is deliverable to the secretary at or prior to the meeting. Such approvals must be either by:

(1) Not less than two thirds (2/3) of the membership of the Board of Directors and by not less than fifty-one (51%) percent of the voting interests of the membership of the Association; or

(2)—Not less than two thirds (2/3) of the voting interests of the membership of the Association; or

(3)(2) Until turnover of Association control by Developer the Board of Directors shall have the sole right to amend the Bylaws by two third (2/3) vote provided the amendment does not increase the number of Units nor alter the boundaries of the common elements.

C. Provided, however, that no amendment shall discriminate against any Unit Owner nor against any Unit or class or group of Units, unless the Unit Owners so affected shall consent; and no amendment shall change any Unit or decrease the share in the common elements appurtenant to it, unless the record Owner of the Unit concerned and all record owners of the mortgages on such Unit shall join in the execution of the amendment. Neither shall an amendment make any change in the section entitled "insurance" nor the section entitled "reconstruction or repair after casualty" unless the record owners of all mortgages upon the Condominium shall join the execution of this amendment. An amendment shall not affect the Developer prior to turnover of Association control without Developer's written consent.

D. A copy of each amendment shall be attached to a certificate certifying that the amendment was duly adopted, which certificate shall be executed by the president or vicepresident of the Association with the formalities of a deed. The amendment shall be effective when such certificate and copy of the amendment are recorded in the Public Records of Charlotte

PAGE 16 OF BYLAWS

County, Florida, with identification on the first page thereof of the book and page of the public records where the Declaration of each Condominium operated by the Association is recorded.

The foregoing were adopted as the Bylaws of HIDEAWAY BAY BEACH CLUB CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION, INC., a Corporation Not-For-Profit under the laws of the State of Florida, at the first meeting of the Board of Directors of HIDEAWAY BAY BEACH CLUB CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION, INC., on this _____ day of ______.

H. R. FOXWORTHY, Secretary

APPROVED:

RUSSELL A. CURRIN, JR. President

PAGE 17 OF BYLAWS